
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, December 16, 2013

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 3 - 8

Regular PM Meeting - December 9, 2013

3. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

3.1 Rezoning Application No. Z13-0036 - 1060 Hollywood Road S., Swaranjit Singh
Punia & Harbant Kaur Punia

9 - 21

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject property from RU1 - Large Lot
Housing to RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing to allow the subdivision of the lot into
three parcels (two single detached housing lots and one semi-detached
housing or duplex lot.)

3.1.1 Bylaw No. 10904 (Z13-0026) - 1060 Hollywood Road S, Swaranjit Singh
Punia & Harbant Kaur Punia

22 - 22

To give Bylaw No. 10904 first reading.

3.2 Rezoning Application No. Z13-0039 - 1334 St Paul St, CTQ Holdings Ltd. 23 - 35

This application seeks to rezone the subject property from I2 – General
Industrial zone to C7 – Central Business Commercial zone, to facilitate office
use within the existing building on site.

3.2.1 Bylaw No. 10906 (Z13-0039) - 1334 St. Paul Street, CTQ Holdings Ltd. 36 - 36

To give Bylaw No. 10906 first reading.

1



3.3 Rezoning Application No. Z09-0035, Extension Request - 3130 Sexsmith Road,
Matthew James Ewonus

37 - 39

To consider a final extension to extend the date for adoption of Zone
Amending Bylaw No. 10436 from November 16, 2013 to November 16, 2014 in
order to rezone the subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the
new I6 - Low-Impact Transitional Industrial zone.

3.4 Rezoning Application No. Z10-0092, Extension Request - 3150 Sexsmith Road,
Kimberly & John Berg

40 - 42

To consider a final extension to extend the date for adoption of Zone
Amending Bylaw No. 10443 from November 16, 2013 to November 16, 2014 in
order to rezone the subject property from the A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to the
new I6 - Low-Impact Transitional Industrial zone.

4. Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

4.1 Bylaw No. 10670 (TA09-0007) - Text Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 43 - 55

To adopt Bylaw No. 10670 in order to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No.
8000, Section 13, Urban Residential Zones, by adding a new Hillside Zones.

5. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 Parade Float Update 56 - 67

To provide Council an update on the travels of Kelowna’s parade float and the
successes at different parades.

5.2 Hospital Transition Area Planning 68 - 72

To commence with Phase 1 of a plan that will proactively guide future
development opportunities in the transition area while protecting the
integrity of the established neighbourhoods surrounding Kelowna General
Hospital (KGH). Phase 1 includes the engagement of impacted property
owners and residents to create development guidelines for those interface
transition areas.

6. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

6.1 Bylaw No. 10903 - Amendment No. 5 to Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery
Bylaw No. 8807

73 - 79

To adopt Bylaw No. 10903 in order to amend Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery
Bylaw No. 8807.

7. Mayor and Councillor Items

8. Termination

2



 1 

 

 
 

City of Kelowna 

Regular Council Meeting 

Minutes 

 

 

Date: 

Location: 

Monday, December 9, 2013 

Council Chamber 

City Hall, 1435 Water Street 

 

Council Members 

Present: 

Mayor Walter Gray and Councillors Colin Basran, Andre Blanleil, 

Maxine DeHart, Gail Given, Robert Hobson, Mohini Singh, Luke 

Stack and Gerry Zimmermann 

 

Staff Present: City Manager, Ron Mattiussi; City Clerk, Stephen Fleming; Interim 

Divisional Director, Infrastructure, John Vos*; Divisional Director, 

Active Living & Culture, Jim Gabriel*; Manager, Subdivision, 

Agriculture & Environment, Todd Cashin*; Manager, Information 

Services, Rob Entwistle*; Director, Financial Services, Keith 

Grayston*; Manager, Community & Neighbourhood Programs, 

Louise Roberts*; Planner II, Alec Warrender*; Manager, Capital 

Assets & Investment, Joel Shaw*; Manager, Parks Services, Ian 

Wilson*; Manager, Cemetery, Norm Ryder*; and Council Recording 

Secretary, Sandi Horning 

 
(* denotes partial attendance) 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Mayor Gray called the meeting to order at 1:33 p.m. 
 
Mayor Gray advised that the meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council 
form part of the public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet 
and a delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable. 
  

3



 2 

 

 
2. Confirmation of Minutes 
 
Moved By  Councillor Hobson/Seconded By  Councillor Stack 
 

R777/13/12/09  THAT the Minutes of the Regular PM Meeting of December 2, 2013 be 
confirmed as circulated. 

 
Carried 

 
3. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws 
 

3.1. Rezoning Application No. Z12-0069 - 1215 St Paul Street and 557 & 567 
Clement Avenue, Joseph Higgins et al 

 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint Presentation summarizing the application before Council and 

responded to questions from Council. 
 
Council: 
- Expressed a concern with the proposed parking. 
- Expressed a concern with the interface to the neighbourhood. 
- Expressed a concern with the lack of a residential component. 
 
Moved By  Councillor Stack/Seconded By  Councillor Basran 
 

R778/13/12/09  THAT Council defers consideration of Official Community Plan Bylaw 
Amendment Application No. OCP12-0017 and Rezoning Application No. Z12-0069 for 
the properties located at 1215 St. Paul Street and 557 & 567 Clement Avenue; 
 
AND THAT Council directs staff to meet with the Applicant to discuss Council’s 
concerns with the proposed development and report back to Council. 

 
Carried 

 
3.1.1. Bylaw No. 10901 (OCP12-0017) - 1215 St. Paul Street and 557 & 567 

Clement Avenue, Joseph Higgins et al 
 
Bylaw No. 10901 was not considered by Council. 
 

3.1.2. Bylaw No. 10902 (Z12-0069) - 1215 St. Paul Street and 557 & 567 
Clement Avenue, Joseph Higgins et al 

 
Bylaw No. 10902 was not considered by Council. 

 
3.2. Bylaw No. 10817 (OCP12-0006) - 3787, 3791 & 3795 Lakeshore Road, 

Westcorp On the Lake Inc. 
 

Moved By  Councillor Zimmermann/Seconded By  Councillor DeHart 
 

R779/13/12/09  THAT Bylaw No. 10817 be adopted. 
 

Carried 
  

4



 3 

 

 
3.2.1. Bylaw No. 10812 (TA12-0007) - New CD24 Comprehensive 

Development Zone 24 
 

Moved By  Councillor Stack/Seconded By  Councillor Zimmermann 
 

R780/13/12/09  THAT Bylaw No. 10812 be adopted. 
 

Carried 
 

3.2.2. Bylaw No. 10818 (Z12-0039) - 3787, 3791 & 3795 Lakeshore Road, 
Westcorp on the Lake Inc. 

 
Moved By  Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By  Councillor Basran 
 

R781/13/12/09  THAT Bylaw No. 10818 be adopted. 
 

Carried 
 

3.2.3. Bylaw No. 10813 - Amendment No. 20 to Sign Bylaw No. 8235 
 

Moved By  Councillor Basran/Seconded By  Councillor Blanleil 
 

R782/13/12/09  THAT Bylaw No. 10813 be adopted. 
 

Carried 
 

3.2.4. Development Permit Application No. DP12-0094 - 3787, 3791 & 3795 
Lakeshore Road, Westcorp On The Lake Inc. 

 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint Presentation summarizing the application before Council and 

responded to questions from Council. 
 
Moved By  Councillor Stack/Seconded By  Councillor Hobson 
 

R783/13/12/09  THAT Final Adoption of the OCP Amending Bylaw No. 10817, Zone 
Amending Bylaw No. 10818 and Text Amending Bylaw No. 10812 be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP10-0131 for 
Lot 2, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 Except Parcel A (Plan B6180) and H9673, located at 
3791 Lakeshore Road; Lot 3, DL 134, ODYD, Plan 3420 Except Plan H9673, located at 
3795 Lakeshore Road, and Lot B, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 12063 located at 3787 
Lakeshore Road, Kelowna B.C. Kelowna B.C., subject to the following: 
 

1. The development shall be phased over time and designed in accordance with 
pages 1-32 of the CD24 Comprehensive Development Design Guidelines 
attached as Schedule “A”. 

 
Carried 

 
3.3. Rezoning Application No. Z11-0083, Extension Request - 1429 KLO Rd, 

Arnold & Melitta Frank 
 

Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint Presentation summarizing the rationale for the requested 

extension. 

5



 4 

 

 
Moved By  Councillor Given/Seconded By  Councillor Hobson 
 

R784/13/12/09  THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw 
No. 10540, the deadline for the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10782, for Lot 
52, D.L. 131, ODYD, Plan 186 except Plan KAP78326  located on 1429 KLO Road, 
Kelowna, BC, be extended from December 11, 2013 to December 11, 2014.  

 
Carried 

 
3.4. Rezoning Application No. Z09-0062, Extension Request, W of South 

Perimeter Way, 0775362 BC Ltd/0775362 BC Ltd. 
 

Moved By  Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By  Councillor DeHart 
 

R785/13/12/09  THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw 
No. 10540, the deadline for the adoption of Amending Bylaw No. 10471, for Lot A, 
Section 23, Township 28, SDYD, Plan KAP89051 located on (W of) South Perimeter 
Way, Kelowna, BC, be extended from November 27, 2013 to November 27, 2014. 

 
Carried 

 
3.5. Rezoning Application No. Z09-0077, Extension Request, 4064 Lakeshore Rd, 

Rex Carter Jardine 
 

Moved By  Councillor Hobson/Seconded By  Councillor Stack 
 

R786/13/12/09  THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw 
No. 10540, the deadline for the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10306, for Lot 
1, Section 1 Township 25 and Section 6 Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP89719 located on 
4064 Lakeshore Road, Kelowna, BC, be extended from December 15, 2013 to 
December 15, 2014.  

 
Carried 

 
4. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws 
 

4.1. 2014 Financial Plan 
 

Mayor Gray announced that the City of Kelowna’s Financial Services Department has received 
the Government Finance Officers Association’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for 
its 2012 Budget.  Mayor Gray presented the Award to the Financial Services Department. 
 
Staff: 
- Displayed a PowerPoint Presentation summarizing the 2014 Financial Plan and responded 

to questions from Council. 
 
City Manager: 
- Noted that this will be Mr. Grayston's last budget for the City as he will be retiring in 

2014. 
- Acknowledged the staff that have worked on the 2014 Financial Plan. 
  

6



 5 

 

 
Moved By  Councillor Stack/Seconded By  Councillor Given 
 

R787/13/12/09  THAT Council receives, for information, the presentation from the 
Director, Financial Services and the Capital Assets and Investment Manager dated 
December 9, 2013 with respect to the 2014 Financial Plan. 

 
Carried 

 
4.2. Neighbourhood Learning Centre Joint Use Agreement - School District No.23 
 

Staff: 
- Summarized the Joint Use Agreement with School District No. 23 and responded to 

questions from Council. 
 

Moved By  Councillor Hobson/Seconded By  Councillor Given 
 
R788/13/12/09  THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the Manager, 
Community & Neighbourhood Programs, dated December 4, 2013, regarding the Joint 
Use Agreement with Board of Education of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) 
for the Neighbourhood Learning Centre at Okanagan Mission Secondary School; 
 
AND THAT Council approves the City entering into a Joint Use Agreement with the 
Board of Education of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) for the Neighbourhood 
Learning Centre at Okanagan Mission Secondary School, in the form attached to the 
Report from the Manager, Community & Neighbourhood Programs dated December 4, 
2013; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the City’s financial obligations in Joint Use Agreement 
during its review of the 2014 Provisional Budget; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT, subject to 2014 Budget approval, the Mayor and City Clerk be 
authorized to execute the Joint Use Agreement. 

 
Carried 

 
4.3. Shaw WiFi  
 

Staff: 
- Summarized the Facilities Attachment License Agreement. 
- Advised that a representative from Shaw is present in the gallery should Council have any 

questions. 
- Responded to questions from Council. 
 
Mayor Gray: 
- Noted that Council has received correspondence with respect to this item. 
 
Moved By  Councillor Basran/Seconded By  Councillor DeHart 
 

R789/13/12/09  THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the 
Information Services Manager dated December 09, 2013, with respect to an agreement 
with Shaw Cablesystems Limited for provision of WiFi service at certain City facilities; 
 
AND THAT Council approves the City entering into a five year license agreement with 
Shaw Cablesystems Limited, as outlined in the report of the Information Services 
Manager dated December 09, 2013; 
 

7



 6 

 

AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the “Facilities 
Attachment License Agreement” with Shaw Cablesystems Limited as attached to the 
report of the Information Services Manager, dated December 09, 2013. 
 

Carried 
 

4.4. Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery Fees 
 

Staff: 
- Summarized the amendments being proposed to Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery Bylaw. 
- Displayed Schedule "A" attached to the amending Bylaw. 
- Responded to questions from Council. 
 
Moved By  Councillor Zimmermann/Seconded By  Councillor Hobson 
 

R790/13/12/09  THAT Council approves the recommended fee changes as outlined in 
Attachment A of the Parks Manager's report dated December 9, 2013 with respect to 
the Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery Fees; 
 
AND THAT Council forward the amendments to Kelowna Memorial Park Cemetery 
Bylaw No. 8842 for reading consideration. 

 
Carried 

 
Moved By  Councillor Blanleil/Seconded By  Councillor Basran 
 

R791/13/12/09  THAT Council directs staff to investigate an automatic, annual cost of 
living increase for fees charged by the City of Kelowna and report back to Council with 
the proposed methodology. 
 

Carried 
 

4.4.1. Bylaw No. 10903 - Amendment No. 5 to Kelowna Memorial Park 
Cemetery Bylaw No.8807 

 
Moved By  Councillor Singh/Seconded By  Councillor Basran 
 

R792/13/12/09  THAT Bylaw No. 10903 be read a first, second and third time. 
 

Carried 
 
5. Mayor and Councillor Items 
 
Mayor Gray: 
- Noted that former City employee and Councillor, Henry Markgraf, passed away. 
- Reminded Council that the Santa Bus will be outside the Queensway exit at 4:00 pm. 
 
6. Termination 
 
This meeting was declared terminated at 3:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Mayor                  City Clerk 
 
/slh 

8



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 16, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment, Community Planning & Real Estate 
(DB) 

Application: Z13-0036 Owner: 
Swaranjit Singh Punia & 
Harbant Kaur Punia 

Address: 1060 Hollywood Rd S. Applicant: 
CTQ Consultants Ltd. (Brad 
Farrell) 

Subject: Z13-0036 DB Council Report   

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing  

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0036 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 1, Section 22, Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP58290, 
located on 1060 Hollywood Rd, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – 
Two Dwelling Housing zone be, considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the issuance 
of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject property from RU1 – Large Lot Housing to RU6 – Two 
Dwelling Housing to allow the subdivision of the lot into three parcels (two single detached 
housing lots and one semi-detached housing or duplex lot). 

 

  

9



Z13-0036 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 

Planning staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow the subdivision of the lot. The 
proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation of 
Single/Two Unit residential for the area, and fits well within the existing neighborhood context, 
as there are numerous examples of RU6 development in the area. 

The applicant has conducted neighbor consultation and no major issues were identified. As 
proposed, the application does not trigger any variances to the Zoning Bylaw; and, should the 
land use be supported, a Development Permit to evaluate the form and character of the proposal 
will be handled at a staff level (for the proposed semi detached or duplex lot). 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation as described in the attached Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were 
identified during consultation from neighbouring parcels. 

4.2 Project Description 

The subject property presently contains one single family dwelling located roughly in the middle 
and is zoned RU1.  The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to RU6- Two Dwelling 
Housing for the purpose of subdividing.   The existing dwelling would be removed, and the 
applicant would create three lots.  The two proposed southern lots would be for single detached 
dwellings and the proposed third northern lot would be for semi detached dwellings or a duplex.  

Figure 1 – proposed subdivision 

 

10



Z13-0036 – Page 3 

 
 

Each of the lots would meet or exceed the required road frontage under the RU6 subdivision 
regulations (see zoning analysis table for details). Access and parking will be addressed through 
the subdivision and development permit process. 

A Development Permit to evaluate the form and character and landscaping will be required for 
proposed lot 1 (Figure 1), and will be executed at a staff level prior to issuance of a building 
permit.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is approximately 2349 m2 and is fronting on Hollywood Rd S and shares its 
northern property line with a School District 23 property.  The OCP designates the subject 
property S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential and the lot is within the Permanent Growth 
Boundary.  

The lot presently contains one single detached dwelling and a detached accessory building. In 
order to create the proposed subdivision, both structures will have to be demolished.   

The surrounding area is characterized principally by a mix of low density single family, duplex 
development and school sites.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P2 – Educational and Minor Institutional Public Educational 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single dwelling housing 

 

Subject Property Map: 1060 Hollywood Rd S. 

 

 
 

11



Z13-0036 – Page 4 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Proposed lot 1/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 
700 m2 (Duplex or semi 

detached) 
1025 m2 

Lot Width 18.0 m 21.16 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 48.37 m 

Proposed lot 2 /Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 400 m2 (Single Detached) 663 m2 

Lot Width 13.0 m 13.7 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 48.38 m 

Proposed lot 3 /Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 400 m2 (Single Detached) 662 m2 

Lot Width 13.0 m 13.7 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 48.38 m 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Complete Suburbs.2 Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs (see Map 5.1 - Urban Core 
Area), in accordance with “Smart Growth” principles to ensure complete communities. Uses that 
should be present in all areas of the City (consistent with Map 4.1 - Future Land Use Map), at 
appropriate locations, include: commercial, institutional, and all types of residential uses 
(including affordable and special needs housing) at densities appropriate to their context. 
Building heights in excess of four storeys will not be supported within the suburban areas, unless 
provided for by zoning existing prior to adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500. 

Permanent Growth Boundary.3 Establish a Permanent Growth Boundary as identified on Map 4.1 
and Map 5.2. The City of Kelowna will support development of property outside the Permanent 
Growth Boundary for more intensive use only to the extent permitted as per the OCP Future Land 
Use designations in place as of initial adoption of OCP Bylaw 10500, except for Agri-Business 
designated sites or as per Council’s specific amendment of this policy. The Permanent Growth 
Boundary may be reviewed as part of the next major OCP update. 

  

                                                
1
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 

2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

12



Z13-0036 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits if applicable. 

2) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Memorandum from the Development Engineering Branch, dated October 15, 
2013. 

6.3 Irrigation District 

Rutland waterworks will provide comments at subdivision stage. 

6.4 FortisBC Energy 

There are primary distribution facilities within Hollywood Road South, adjacent to the 
subject's east property line.  The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any 
change to the proposed lots' existing service, if any, as well as the provision of 
appropriate land rights where required. Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no 
concerns with this circulation. 

6.5 Shaw 

Shaw Cable approves proposed rezoning application.  

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: September 17, 2013  
 Public consultation Received: November 25, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
Damien Burggraeve, Planner II 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
  

13



Z13-0036 – Page 6 

 
 

Attachments:   

Development Engineering Memorandum, dated October 15, 2013 (2 pages) 
Subject Property Map (1 page) 
Schedule “A” - Site Plan (1 page) 
Schedule “B” – Description of Public Consultation (3 pages) 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: December 4, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AR) 

Application: Z13-0039 Owner: 
CTQ Holdings Ltd.,          
Inc. No. BC0978670 

Address: 1334 St. Paul Street Applicant: CTQ Holdings Ltd. 

Subject: 2013 12 16 Report Z13-0039 1334 St Paul St 

Existing OCP Designation: Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: I2 – General Industrial 

Proposed Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0039 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 17, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 645, located at 1334 St. 
Paul Street, Kelowna, BC from the I2 – General Industrial zone to the C7 – Central Business 
Commercial zone, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with 
Council’s consideration of a Development Permit for the subject property; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose 

This application seeks to rezone the subject property from I2 – General Industrial zone to C7 – 
Central Business Commercial zone, to facilitate office use within the existing building on site. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The subject property is designated Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) in the Kelowna 2030 
Official Community Plan (OCP) and located in the Downtown Urban Centre. The proposal to 
rezone the subject property from the existing I2 – General Industrial zone to the C7 – Central 

23



Z13-0039 – Page 2 

 
 

Business Commercial zone is consistent with the future land use designation, and is the 
appropriate zone for the Downtown.  

The proposed rezoning will enable the existing building to be re-used for office use and other 
commercial uses that are both appropriate for and consistent with the surrounding Downtown 
context. The proposal contemplates improvements to the existing building’s exterior and 
landscape frontage, which will contribute positively to the area’s overall appearance. Should 
Council give favourable consideration to this application, the Development Permit for form and 
character would be brought forward for consideration at a later meeting with a more detailed 
analysis. 

In accordance with Council Policy No. 367, the applicant team has been proactive in engaging 
with surrounding land owners and residents within 50 m of the subject property. To date, staff 
has not received any comments from the public in regards to the application. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The purpose of this application is to rezone the subject property from I2 – General Industrial zone 
to C7 – Central Business Commercial zone, to facilitate office use and the potential for other 
commercial uses within the existing building on site, consistent with the Kelowna 2030 Official 
Community Plan (OCP) future land use designation of MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 
and surrounding downtown properties.  

The subject building was constructed in the 1970s and has been used for a limited range of office 
and commercial uses permissible under the I2 zone over the years (e.g., business support 
services, participant recreational services). The corporate property owner is presently seeking to 
move its business offices downtown, and to rezone the subject property to the C7 zone to enable 
re-use of the existing building for office use.  

As part of the proposal to re-use the subject building, the building’s frontage will be renovated 
and modernized, including a new stucco finish and painting; the replacement of windows, doors, 
and entrance awning; and introduction of front yard landscaping. Sufficient vehicular and bicycle 
parking can be provided onsite, in the existing rear yard parking area with access from the rear 
lane. 

4.2 Site Context 

This 690 m2 site is located mid-block on the west side of St. Paul Street, between Doyle and 
Cawston Avenues. It is neighboured by multi-storey, mixed-use development to the west and 
east.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I2 - General Industrial Vacant 

East C7 – Central Business District Mixed-Use Development (St. Paul Place) 

South I2 - General Industrial 2-Storey Commercial Building 

West C7 – Central Business District Mixed-Use Development (Ellis Court) 

 

  

24



Z13-0039 – Page 3 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 1334 St. Paul Street 

 
 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA C7 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 200 m2 689.7 m2 

Lot Width 6 m 15.24 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 45.26 m 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 9.0 FAR 0.61 

Height 44 m 8 m (2 storeys) 

Front Yard 0 m 1.2 m 

Side Yard (south) 0 m 0 m 

Side Yard (north) 0 m 0 m 

Rear Yard 0 m 24.9 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 6 spaces 7 spaces 

Bicycle Parking 3 Class I / 1 Class II Provided 

Loading Space 1 space Provided 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Chapter 5 - Development Process  

Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done 

25



Z13-0039 – Page 4 

 
 

by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 
metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) 
through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 
5.3) in particular and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land 
Use Map 4.1. 

Policy 4 – Downtown Development. Support rezoning to C7 use in the downtown Urban 
Centre area only where properties are surrounded on a minimum of 3 sides by existing C7 
zoning. The intent of this policy is to support intensification within the existing core areas 
of the Downtown.  

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permit(s); 

2) A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit applications, 
but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 
a) The Main floor layout appears to have altered the integrity of the exit stairwell, so 

revisions may be required or an alternative solution may be required. The architect or 
engineer of record acting as prime consultant is required to submit for an alternative 
solution as per the requirements outlined in the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code. 

b) The rated fire doors at the top of the main stairwell have been removed from the original 
permit acceptance drawings and are required to maintain the integrity of the fire exit or 
an alternative solution is required to be approved to maintain minimum code 
requirements. 

c) The exiting of the 2nd floor does not appear to meet minimum code requirements 
(number of exits, travel distance, interconnected floor space, stair rating etc).  

d) The rear exit stairs shown are required to be rated and not allowed to pass in front of 
main floor windows. The architect of record is to address the fire safety requirements of 
the code in the permit application drawings. 

e) Guard rails are required for the new rear deck along with any provisions for gates and 
locks provided in the permit application drawing sets; 

3) A Structural and Architectural consult will be required to provide drawings and schedules for 
the new rear deck at time of permit application. The architect of record is to address the 
NAFS requirements for the installation of the new the doors and windows and provide the 
appropriate modelling for minimum code compliance to ASHRAE 90.1; 

4) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memorandum, dated November 8, 2013. 

6.3 Fire Department 

No concerns. 

6.4 Ministry of Transportation & Infrastructure (MOTI) 

The Ministry has no issues regarding this rezoning application. 

26



Z13-0039 – Page 5 

 
 

6.5 FortisBC Inc. (Electric) 

There are primary distribution facilities along St. Paul Street and within the lane adjacent to the 
subject's west property line.  The applicant is responsible for costs associated with any change to 
subject's existing service, if any, as well as the provision of appropriate land rights where 
required. Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no concerns with this circulation. In order to 
initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-4FORTIS (1-866-436-7847). It should be 
noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with 
at that time, prior to construction.   

6.6 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications’ interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.7 Telus 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development.  Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  October 23, 2013  
Revised Application Materials Received: November 28, 2013 

Report prepared by: 

     
Abigail Riley, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning &  
Real Estate 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Concept 
Context/Site Photos 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated November 8, 2013 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 12/16/2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMC) 

Application: Z09-0035 Owner: Matthew James Ewonus 

Address: 3130 Sexsmith Road Applicant: Protech Consulting 

Subject: Extension Report  

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: I6 – Low-Impact Transitional Industrial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10436 (Z09-0035), for Lot 28 Section 3 Township 23 
ODYD Plan 18861, located at 3130 Sexsmith Road, Kelowna, BC, be extended from November 16, 
2013 to November 16, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a final extension to extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10436 
from November 16, 2013 to November 16, 2014 in order to rezone the subject property from the 
A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the new I6 – Low-Impact Transitional Industrial zone. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The above noted development application was originally considered at a Public Hearing by 
Council on November 16, 2010. 

 
Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

 
In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or 
older and has been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in 
writing that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

37



Z09-0035 – Page 2 

 
 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a 
meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that 
Amendment application. 
 

Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision for Council to consider an extension to an 
amending bylaw for up to 12 months beyond the 12 months deadline.   

 
By-Law No. 10436 (Z09-0035) received second and third readings on November 16, 2010 after the 
Public Hearing held on the same date. The applicant wishes to have this application remain open 
for an additional twelve months in order to complete requirements to the satisfaction of the 
Development Engineering Branch and Glenmore Ellison Improvement District.  The water and 
sewer servicing requirements for the area bounded by Sexsmith, Arab and Appaloosa roads has 
been under review by City staff this last year with a view to determine acceptable servicing 
options for the area.  It is anticipated that this will occur in the near future. 
 
When the last extension application was considered by Council, the following notification was 
formalized to inform the applicant with respect to future bylaw extensions: 

 
“Please be advised the Council had a general discussion with respect to extending 
applications at third reading and requested that you be advised that future extensions may 
not be granted without compelling rationale to do so.” 
 

Given that four years has lapsed with limited activity and in consideration of Council’s previous 
anecdotal forewarning at the last extension granted, there is no compelling reason to further 
extend the bylaw.  However, given the servicing review by City staff that has been undertaken, it 
is reasonable to grant the applicant one further extension.  The subject property requires a 
Development Permit to be submitted in order to review the scope of the proposal, which remains 
an outstanding item.   
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith - Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist – Divisional Director,  
         Community Planning & Real Estate 
  

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

38



39



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

Date: 12/16/2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: Z10-0092 Owner: 
Kimberly Carole Berg 

John Robert Berg 

Address: 3150 Sexsmith Road Applicant: Protech Consulting 2012 

Subject: Rezoning Application, Extension Report  

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: I6 – Low Impact Transitional Industrial Zone 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10443 (Z10-0092), for Lot 27 Section 3 Township 23 
ODYD Plan 18861, located at 3150 Sexsmith Road, Kelowna, BC, be extended from November 16, 
2013 to November 16, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a final extension to extend the date for adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10443 
from November 16, 2013 to November 16, 2014 in order to rezone the subject property from the 
A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the new I6 – Low-Impact Transitional Industrial zone. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

The above noted development application was originally considered at a Public Hearing by 
Council on November 16, 2010. 

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 
 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and 
has been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 
a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in 
writing that the file will be closed; 
b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 
c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a 
meeting of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that 
Amendment application. 

40



Z10-0092– Page 2 

 
 

 
Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision for Council to consider an extension to an 
amending bylaw for up to 12 months beyond the 12 months deadline.   

 
Bylaw No. 10443 (Z10-0092) received second and third readings on November 16, 2010 after the 
Public Hearing held on the same date. This project remains unchanged and is the same in all 
respects as originally applied for.  The applicant wishes to have this application remain open for 
an additional 12 months in order to satisfy the Development Engineering Branch and Glenmore 
Ellison Improvement District requirements. The water and sewer servicing requirements for the 
area bounded by Sexsmith, Arab and Appaloosa roads has been under review by City staff this 
past year with a view to determine acceptable servicing options for the area.  It is anticipated 
that this will occur in the near future. 

 
When the last extension application was considered by Council, the following notification was 
formalized to inform the applicant with respect to future bylaw extensions: 

 
“Please be advised the Council had a general discussion with respect to extending 
applications at third reading and requested that you be advised that future extensions may 
not be granted without compelling rationale to do so.” 
 

Given that four years has lapsed with limited activity and in consideration of Council’s previous 
concern with the lack of forward progress, there is no compelling reason to further extend the 
bylaw.  However, given the servicing review by City staff that has been undertaken, it is 
reasonable to grant the applicant one further extension.  The subject property requires a 
Development Permit to be submitted in order to review the scope of the proposal, which remains 
an outstanding item. 
 
Report prepared by: 
 
 
     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith - Manager, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist - Divisional Director 
     Community Planning & Real Estate 
 

Attachments: 

Site Plan 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
December 11, 2013 
 

Rim No. 
 

0610-53 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Divisional Director, Active Living & Culture 

Subject: 
 

2013 12 11 Parade Float Report to Council 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives as information, the report from the Director, Active Living & Culture, 
regarding the 2013 parade float activities and awards dated December 11, 2013. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To provide Council an update on the travels of Kelowna’s parade float and the successes at 
different parades. 
 
Background: 
 
The City of Kelowna float “Spirit of the Lake” had a busy parade season in 2013.  Kelowna’s 
float participated in 22 parades of which 16 were judged parades.  The Spirit of the Lake won 
awards in 13 of the judged parades in 2013.   
 
Feb 2nd Vernon Winter Carnival Parade 1st Place - Community Float  

Mar 16th Bellingham, WA  St. Patrick’s Day Parade No Judging 

Mar 17th  Vancouver St. Patrick’s Day Parade No Judging 

Mar 30th Osoyoos Easter Parade 2nd Place – Overall Entry 

April 27th Kelowna Vaisakhi Parade No Judging 

May 11th Grand Coulee Dam, WA Colorama Festival 
Parade 

1st Place – Community Float 

May 18th  Rutland May Days Parade 1st Place – Community Float 

May 19th  Falkland Stampede Parade No Judging 

June 1st Portland, OR Starlight Parade 3rd Place – Best Festival or City 
Division 

June 8th Kelowna Fat Cat Children’s Festival Parade No Judging 

June 15th  Marysville, WA Strawberry Festival Grand 
Parade 

1st Place – Best Overall Float Grand 
Sweepstakes Award – Community 

June 29th  Cashmere, WA Crunch Pak Founders Day 
Grand Parade 

Mayor’s Award – Best Overall 

July 1st Abbotsford Canada Day Parade No Award 

July 1st Vancouver Canada Day Parade No Judging 

56



July 13th Chewelah, WA Chataqua Festival Parade No Award 

July 27th  Deer Park, WA Settlers Day Parade 1st Place – Community Float 

Aug 3rd Lake City, WA Pioneer Days Parade 1st Place – Float Division 

Aug 10th Penticton Peach Festival Grand Parade No Award 

Aug 31st Armstrong Interior Provincial Exhibition 
Parade 

3rd Place tied – Communities over 
10,000 

Sept 7th Salmon Arm Fall Fair Parade 2nd Place Community/Non-profit 

Sept 28th Leavenworth, WA Autumn Leaf Festival 
Parade 

1st Place – Best “Out of Country” 
Award 

Sept 29th  Rotary Centre for the Arts Special Event – Kelowna Chamber of 
Commerce AGM 

Nov 29th Chase Santa Clause Parade 1st Place – Best Overall 

 
To ensure there is opportunity for our citizens to view the “Spirit of the Lake”, the schedule 
includes annual local events. In 2013 the float took part in the Vaisakhi Parade, Rutland May 
Days as well as the Kelowna Fat Cat Children’s Festival Parade.  
 
The 2014 overall schedule is currently being prepared with potential new parades such as; 
Prince George May Days, Spokane Lilac Festival, New Westminster Hyack Festival and the 
Vancouver Grey Cup Parade. 
 
Internal Circulation:  Alison Thompson, Marketing & Communications Advisor 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
Existing Policy 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations 
Personnel Implications 
External Agency/Public Comments 
Communications Comments 
Alternate Recommendation 
 
Submitted by:  

 
 
J. Gabriel, Divisional Director, Active Living & Culture  
                   
 
 
Attachment:  2013 Parade Float PowerPoint 
 
Cc: Divisional Director, Communications 

Clarence Johnson, Volunteer Float Coordinator 

57



C I T Y  O F  K E L O W N A  
2 0 1 3  PA R A D E  F L O AT  

58



Spirit of the Lake float travelled over 
10,000 km to 22 parades 

59



C I T Y ’ S  V I S I T E D  I N  2 0 1 3  

Vernon 
Bellingham 
Vancouver 
Osoyoos 
Kelowna 
Grand Coulee Dam 
Rutland 
Falkland 
Portland 
Kelowna 
Marysville 

 
 

Cashmere 
Abbotsford 
Vancouver 
Chewelah 
Deer Park 
Lake City 
Penticton 
Armstrong 
Salmon Arm 
Leavenworth 
Chase  

 
60



L O C A L  PA RT I C I PAT I O N  

61



AWA R D S  

62



F I R S T  P L A C E  F I N I S H E S  

Vernon 
Grand Coulee Dam 
Marysville 
Deer Park 
Lake City 
Leavenworth 
Chase 
 

 63



Vancouver  
St. Patrick's Day 
Parade 
120,000 
spectators 

Portland  
Starlight Parade 
250,000 
spectators 

64



VA N C O U V E R  C A N A D A D AY  PA R A D E  

65



2 0 1 4  P R O P O S E D  PA R A D E S  
New: 

Lethbridge 
Yakima 

Returning: 
Prince George 
Spokane 
Lumby 
Cranbrook 
Williams Lake 
New Westminster 
Calgary 
Vancouver Grey Cup 
 
 
 

66



C I T Y  O F  K E L O W N A PA R A D E  F L O AT  2 0 1 3  

67



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
December 16, 2013 
 

File: 
 

1200-40 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Danielle Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Policy & Planning 

Subject: 
 

2013-12-16 Report - Hospital Transition Area Planning 

 Report prepared by: Gary Stephen, Long Range Planning Manager 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives for information the report from the Policy & Planning Department 

Manager, dated December 16, 2013, with respect to the Hospital Transition Area Plan;  

 

AND THAT Council directs staff to proceed with the Hospital Transition Area Planning (Phase 

1) as outlined in the report from the Policy & Planning Department Manager dated December 

16, 2013. 

 
Purpose:  
 
To commence with Phase 1 of a plan that will proactively guide future development 

opportunities in the transition area while protecting the integrity of the established 

neighbourhoods surrounding Kelowna General Hospital (KGH). Phase 1 includes the 

engagement of impacted property owners and residents to create development guidelines for 

those interface transition areas. 

 
Background: 
 
On July 29, 2013 staff presented a report to Council seeking direction to proceed with a 

Hospital Area Planning exercise intended to resolve transitional land use issues in 

neighbourhoods adjacent to KGH. At that meeting Council adopted the following resolutions: 

 
THAT Council receives for information the report from Policy and Planning, dated 
July 22, 2013 with respect to the Hospital Area Plan; 
 
AND THAT Council directs staff to meet with Interior Health to review the 
boundaries and report back regarding Interior Health Authority’s intent for properties 
owned by IHA within the Plan area. 

68



 
Staff met with Interior Health (IH) representatives on September 20, 2013 to discuss interface 

issues and to identify IH owned properties and their intentions for future use. IH comments 

are summarized under External Agency / Public Comments below. 

 

Through a planning area prioritization exercise, it has been determined that this area is 

deemed a high priority for improved interface planning. The resulting recommendations will 

provide better guidance for imminent development, create certainty to residents and help 

preserve the integrity of the heritage conservation area. Consistent with Council’s initial 

direction from January 28, 2013 to review KGH / Abbott Street Conservation Area transitional 

issues, Staff is proposing to proceed with Phase 1 of the Hospital Transition Area Planning 

exercise which will include a focused process and timeline.  

 

Much of the initial work in Phase 1 will be general in nature and will include topics such as 

best practice research and direct consultation. The proposed project timeline for Phase 1 is 

outlined as follows: 

 

 Creation of consultation plan: 2-3 weeks (mid-January, 2014) 

 Engagement with property owners, neighbourhood associations, KGH: 4 weeks (mid-

February, 2014) 

 Draft Transition Plan and Zoning Bylaw amendments (as necessary): 6 weeks (March, 

2014) 

 Return to community with draft: early April, 2014 

 Report to Council for OCP and/or zoning text amendment: late April, 2014 

 First reading: early May, 2014 

 Public Hearing: June, 2014 

 

The exact boundaries of this exercise are not considered critical; however, the map attached 

identifies the general interface area that will be addressed by this Phase 1 planning exercise. 

Potential future changes within this transition area could include updated land use 

designations, a new Health District zone (including transitional development regulations) and 

Heritage Conservation Area boundary and guideline amendments. 

 

Initial public engagement with the directly affected area residents will focus on policy, land 

use and operational changes along the plan boundary that may have an impact on adjoining 

properties. Consultation is intended to engage residents and stakeholders to identify any 

issues not already outlined in previous correspondence and to solicit ideas and solutions. The 

engagement process will be further defined when a more thorough stakeholder / community 

analysis is conducted at the onset of the project. 

 

Upon successful completion of Phase 1, a second phase exercise will occur, subject to the 

outcome of the initial work described in this report. Phase 2 may include an expanded 

boundary area east of Pandosy and will consider longer-term KGH Master Campus planning 

activities. One of the significant issues related to the hospital interface is parking, and the 

69



on-going Parking Management Strategy will help inform Hospital Area planning. Given the 

timing of the Parking Management Strategy, discussions with respect to parking issues will be 

more appropriate in Phase 2, when the Parking Management Strategy is available to provide 

input and direction.  

 

Internal Circulation: 
 
Divisional Director, Community Planning and Real Estate 
Divisional Director, Communications & Information Services 
Manager, Urban Planning  
Senior Communications Consultant, Communications & Information Services 
 
Existing Policy: 
 
OCP Objective 5.20 (Policy 4) – Achieve high quality urban design and appropriate land uses. 

OCP Objective 5.32 (Policy 9) – Ensure the development of institutional facilities meets the 

needs of residents. 

OCP Objective 9.2 (Policy 4) - Identify and conserve heritage resources. 

Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
Phase 1 of the Hospital Transition Area Planning exercise will be conducted using existing 

budget resources. 

 
Personnel Implications: 
 
The Hospital Transition Area Planning exercise will be prepared using existing staff resources.  
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
City Council and staff have been made aware of numerous challenges and affects of hospital 

development on residents living in, or concerned with, the adjacent neighbourhoods. 

Complaints have been in the form of letters, emails, walk-in visits and correspondence from 

Neighbourhood Association representatives (FRAHCAS / KSAN). Recent correspondence from 

FRAHCAS (June 2013) has indicated that they would be receptive to transition area planning 

(including potential amendments to the Heritage Area boundary). They are also amenable to 

the opportunity for land use changes that are accomplished in a manner sensitive to the 

residential character of the area, and the provision of stipulations for surface parking with 

robust enforcement. 

 

Interior Health Input 

 

IH property holdings were known to staff when the Phase 1 project area was initially 

presented to City Council. IH has indicated that they do not have any plans to expand their 

activities to properties on Glenwood Avenue adjacent to their recent parking lot proposal. 

They have also indicated that they currently do not have any plans or funding available to 

70



expand or develop on their properties along Christleton Avenue. According to IH, any hospital-

related use of these sites would likely be ancillary and focused on day-use (no overnight 

stays).  Any future development would link to the remainder of the KGH campus through the 

parkade. 

 

IH is not averse to having a mix of IH-held properties and privately-held health related 

commercial or institutional uses co-located along the Christleton frontage. IH acknowledged 

that development along the Christleton frontage would likely need to be of a nature that 

complemented the single family residential use of the adjoining and facing properties. 

 

Parking remains an important concern for IH, but there are currently no plans in place for 

parking expansion. Some areas that were mentioned as potential sites for future parking 

include KGH’s present site on the west side of Pandosy Street and the Health District east of 

Pandosy. Pedestrian access across Pandosy is a key concern, as both staff and patients are 

reluctant to cross Pandosy. 

 

IH indicated that there is great interest among doctors in having offices within close proximity 

to the hospital – particularly on the west side of Pandosy. Locating offices in the Health 

District on the east side of Pandosy is less desirable because of the perceived barrier created 

by Pandosy Street. 

 

Communications Comments: 
 
Phase 1 of the project will include a focused public engagement strategy developed 

specifically for residents directly affected by the plan. The stakeholders’ process may include 

one-on-one meetings and group meetings of varying participants.  A broader stakeholder 

engagement process may be introduced for Phase 2. 

 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Gary Stephen, Long Range Planning Manager, Policy and Planning 
 
Approved for inclusion:          
Danielle Noble-Brandt, Department Manager, Policy and Planning 
 
Attachment 1: Map 1- Hospital Transition Area Planning boundary (Phase 1) 
 
cc:  Divisional Director, Community Planning and Real Estate 

Divisional Director, Communications & Information Services 
Manager, Urban Planning  
Senior Communications Consultant, Communications & Information Services 

 

  

71



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

Cameron
Park

Maude
Roxby

Wetland

Strathcona
Beach
Park

Abbott
Street

Recreation
Corridor

Francis
Avenue
Beach
Access

Waterfront
Walkway
Kinsmen
Park to

Strathcona
Park

BIRCH AVE

FRANCIS AVE

ROYAL AVE

GLENWOOD AVE

ROSE AVE

LO
NG

 ST

BURNE AVE

SP
EE

R 
ST WO

OD
LA

W
N 

ST

TAYLOR CR

ROBIN WAY

ATWOOD PL

ROSE AVE

ROYAL AVE

RI
CH

TE
R 

ST

PA
ND

OS
Y 

ST

CADDER AVE

AB
BO

TT
 ST

¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.
0 50 100Meters

Hospital Area Plan

Rev. Oct 7, 2013

Education / Institutional
Health District
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
Major Park and Open Space
Single / Two Unit Residential

! !

! !Hospital Area
Abbott Street Recreation Corridor
Registered Heritage Homes
Heritage Conservation Area

AB
BO

TT
 ST

Future Land Use

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79


	Agenda
	2. Minutes - Regular PM Council Meeting_Dec9_2013.docx
	3.1 Z13-0036 DB Council Report.docx
	3.1 Z13-0036 attachment.pdf
	3.1.1 Bylaw No.10904.pdf
	3.2 2013 12 16 Report Z13-0039 1334 St Paul St.docx
	3.2 2013 12 16 Attachments Z13-0039 1334 St Paul St.pdf
	3.2.1 Bylaw No. 10906 (Z13-0039).pdf
	3.3 2013 12 16 Report Z09-0035 Extension to November 16 2014.docx
	3.3 2013 12 16 Attachment Z09-0035 3130 Sexsmith Rd.pdf
	3.4 2013 12 16 Report Z10-0092 extension to November 16, 2014.docx
	3.4 2013 12 16 Attachment Z10-0092 3150 Sexsmith Rd.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 10670 (TA09-0007).pdf
	5.1 2013 12 11 Parade Float Report to Council.docx
	5.1 2013 12 11 Float Presentation 2013 notes.pdf
	5.2 2013-12-16 Report - Hospital Transition Area Planning.docx
	5.2 2013-10-07 Map - Hospital Transition Planning Boundary.pdf
	6.1 Bylaw No. 10903.pdf

